
 

One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 

 

           
 

  
 
 

Monthly Business Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Tuesday, May 28, 2019 

6:00 p.m. – Central Office @ 386 E. Black Street 

AG E N D A 
 

  I.  Call to Order  -   Hayden Joyner – Northwestern / ATC                                                                                    

    A.  Approval of Agenda   (Policy BEDB) 
 (Under consent agenda, all action items will be voted on after one motion and second to approve them without   

 discussion.  If a board member wants any action item discussed or voted on separately, the board member, before the  

 agenda is approved, must ask that the action item be moved to the discussion item section.) 
 
        II.    Recognitions 

A. Recognition of Battle of the Books Winning Team – Cherry Park Elementary 
B. Recognition of Science Bowl Winning Team – Old Pointe Elementary 
C. Recognition of 2019 Toyota TeenDrive365 Video Challenge Winners 
D. Recognition of Scot McGuire, DCMS – SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award  
E. Recognition of Mark Yost, Ryan Tinker, NHS – SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award    

F. Recognition of Ben Hingle, RHHS – SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award 
G. Recognition of James Turner, SPHS – SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award 
H. Recognition of RHHS Men’s Golf State Championship  
I. Heimlich Heroes Demonstration – Richmond Drive Elementary 

 
 

III.    Citizen Participation  
 
      IV.     Consent Action Agenda 

   A. Approval of Minutes (Policy BEDG) 

1. April 8, 2019 Work Session  
2. April 22, 2019 Business Meeting 

               B. Approval of Personnel Recommendations (Policy BDD) 
 
     V.    Action Agenda                   

       2nd Read Policies   (Policy BG/BGD)   
A. Approval of Policy AA – School District Legal Status 
B. Approval of Policy AC – Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
C. Approval of Policy ADF – District Wellness 

 
                   1st Read Policies   (Policy BG/BGD)   

D. Approval of Policy ADA – School District Legal Status 
E. Approval of Policy ADB – Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace and Schools  
F. Approval of Policy ADC – Tobacco Free School District 
G. Approval of Policy JIHC, JIHC-R – Weapons Screening/Use of Metal Detectors 

 
H. Approval of School Renewal Plans 
I. Approval of Community Eligibility Provision (CEP) Resolution 



 

One Team One Mission One Rock Hill 

 

 
VI. Communications   

 
VII.  Report of the Superintendent 

A. Announcements 
 

 

VIII.  Review of School Board Work Session – May 13 
 

IX.  Other and Future Business 
 

X.       Executive Session(s)  (Policy BEC)  

   ~Personnel Matters – Hirings 
 

XI.  Action as Required from Executive Session(s)  (Policy BEC) 
 

XII.  Adjournment 



 

 

 
 
 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: May 22, 2019  
SUBJECT: Call to Order at May 28th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Hayden Joyner, a senior at Northwestern High School, will provide the “Call to Order” at the May 
28th school board meeting. He will be representing Northwestern and the Applied Technology 
Center. 
 
Hayden: 

• Member of National Technical Honors Society 
• Is a Dual Completer at the Applied Technology Center in Digital Art & 

Design and Media Production 
• Member of the Superintendent Student Advisory Council 
• Has worked for the Northwestern Athletic Department as a photographer, 

designer, and social media manager. 
 
Parents: Brian Joyner and Julie Joyner  
 
Siblings in Rock Hill Schools: Will (senior at Northwestern), Victoria (sophomore at 
Northwestern), and Anna (freshman at Northwestern) 
 
Principal:  Hezekiah Massey  
 
Director:  Ron Roveri 
 
Mailing Address: 
1574 Worthington Crossing 
Rock Hill, SC 29732 

Communications Department 
Telephone:  981-1008   -   Fax:  981-1094 



 

 

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: May 22, 2019  
SUBJECT: Recognitions for May 28th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
A. Recognition of Battle of the Books Winner –  

Cherry Park Elementary School of Language Immersion  
Battle of the Books is a competitive reading program where 4th and 5th grade students answer questions 
about 10 books. Each school determines a school winner to compete at the district finals 
This year's battle was held at the Flexible Learning Center on Saturday, March 24. All elementary 
schools competed in a tight race with Cherry Park claiming victory in its inaugural year. The district 
librarians would like to thank school administrators, Dr. Brakefield, and Dr. Jones for their support to the 
Battle of Books reading program. I would like to thank Mt. Gallant Elementary’s Melisa Smith, who serves as 
the district coordinator for this outstanding program. 
 
Members of the winning team are: 
Sadie Bridges 
Campbell Compton 
Jack McCrae 

Hayden Powell 
Victoria Smrekar 
James Townsend 

Jaxon Thomas – alternate 
Isaiah Wilson - alternate 

 
**We have a short video to debut this evening that captures the excitement of the Battle of the Books 
program.** 
 
Let us recognize our winning Cherry Park Elementary Battle of the Books team members and their coach, 
Mr. Robbie Bartless.   
 

B. Recognition of Science Bowl Winner – Old Pointe Elementary School 
The Science Bowl is an experience offered to Rock Hill Schools’ fifth grade students.  Teams of three 
students from our elementary schools are invited to conduct research on an ecology-related topic and 
participate in a Jeopardy-style quiz game.   This year's Science Bowl winner was Old Pointe Elementary 
School with a research project about overpopulation in South Carolina.  Student team members were:  
 
Members of the winning team are: 
Ariel Anderson William Cooper Dylan Wyman 
 
Let us recognize our winning Old Pointe Science Bowl team members and their coach, Mrs. Karen Percival.   
 
 
 

Marketing & Communications Department 

Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 



 

 

C. Recognition of 2019 Toyota TeenDrive365 Video Challenge Winners 
For the past eight years, Discovery Education and Toyota have worked together to make teens aware of the 
dangers of distracted driving through the TeenDrive365 initiative. The TeenDrive365 Video Challenge 
encourages high school teens to develop an original video public service announcement that encourages 
their peers to stay safe behind the wheel. Since its launch in 2011, the video challenge has engaged 
hundreds of thousands of students nationwide. 
  
Hayden Joyner and Catalina Zeigler, students at Northwestern High School, were selected as the South 
Regional Winners in the 2019 Toyota TeenDrive365 Video Challenge. As regional winners, Hayden and 
Catalina, will receive a $1,000 prize.  
 
Let us recognize these talented students and give them a round of applause.    
 
 

D. Recognition of Scot McGuire, DCMS, SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award 
E. Recognition of Mark Yost, NHW, SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award 
F. Recognition of Ben Hingle, RHHS, SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award  
G. Recognition of James Turner, SPHS, SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award 

 
The SCBDA Outstanding Performance Award is the highest possible award given to band programs in the 
state of South Carolina. Tonight, we recognize directors from Dutchman Creek Middle School, Northwestern 
High School, Rock Hill High School, and South Pointe High School for this achievement. To earn this 
recognition, points are accumulated through participation and ratings earned at the following state-
sponsored performance events: Marching Band Championships (High School level only), All-State and Region 
Band, Concert Performance Assessment, and Solo and Ensemble Festival. Kevin Horton, awards chairman for 
the South Carolina Band Director’s Association, says of each of our bands: “the outstanding marching, 
concert, and individual student performances are a testament to the high-quality of teaching taking place in 
the band department at your school.” 
 
Let us recognize these amazing teachers and give them a round of applause.    
 
 

H. Recognition of Rock Hill High Schools Men’s Golf State Championship Team 
A spectacular season for the Rock Hill School Men’s Golf Team was capped with the team winning the 
school’s first-ever golf state championship. The SCHSL 5A state championship was held over two days at the 
Lexington Country Club. After day one of the 36-hole tournament, the Bearcats held a commanding 10-
stroke lead over second place Dorman. By the time it was over, Rock Hill extended its lead to an eye-popping 
26 strokes over second place finishers Dorman and Mauldin.  
 
Members of the team are: 
Zach Reuland, who finished 1st overall at 6-under par 
Nick Mayfield, who finished 7th overall 
Manning Sloop, who finished 8th overall 
Hinson Perry, who finished in a tie for 21st 
Jackson Berry, who finished in a tie for 34th 
 
Tonight, let us recognize these state champion student-athletes and their coach, Mr. Matt Bell. 



 

 

 

I. Heimlich Heroes Demonstrations -  Richmond Drive Elementary School 
Heimlich Heroes is a practical, educational program designed for kids ages seven and older. We use an 
interactive approach to learning. The video training is accompanied by age-appropriate note-taking tools, 
and participants of all ages LOVE the hands-on practice with our specially designed training dolls. 
  
After the Heimlich Heroes training, participants will be able to: 

1. Recognize the signs of choking 
2. Know how to prevent or minimize the risk of choking 
3. Understand how and when to respond with the Heimlich Maneuver 

  
This approach is fun for kids, enables them to gain confidence, and reinforces training to last a lifetime. 
Students and adults alike are engaged and energized as they learn this simple life-saving technique. And, 
once trained, people react confidently during an emergency situation. 
 
With us tonight are:  
Hanna Huddleston – 4th grade    
Kaiden Jordan – 4th grade   
Tyler McGuire – 4th grade   
Georgia Sconyers – 4th grade  
Christian Eller – 5th grade    
Cha’Tyia Moore – 5th grade  
Kelly Robinson-Johnson – 5th grade  
Jack Thomas – 5th grade   
 
4th and 5th graders at Richmond Drive, as well as Ebinport and Lesslie Elementary have been trained this 
year.  
  
https://heimlichheroes.com/ 
 
 
**There will be a demonstration.** 
 
Let’s give these students a big round of applause.   

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fheimlichheroes.com%2F&data=02%7C01%7CCGammons%40rhmail.org%7Cc3c1c9b399e64da78f8108d6df8c22a7%7C57b835c11a6c40088e2fb2a16e5f738a%7C0%7C0%7C636942190302675232&sdata=FqoLX2fqziojux0BenY%2B8UGfSLHHlRnVnX7FL7mWHsU%3D&reserved=0


 

ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE BOARD OF TRUSTEES_______________________ 

 

School Board Work Session   

Monday, April 8, 2019 

Central Office 

 

Call to Order 

The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 4:00 p.m. with members present 

as follows: Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Brent Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, Helena Miller, Robin 

Owens, and Ann Reid.  Mrs. Miller called the meeting to order.   

  

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Mildred Douglas, to approve the agenda.  The 

agenda was unanimously approved as presented, 7-0.  

 

Chairman Miller stated the local news media was notified of the agenda, in writing, on Friday, April 5, 

2019. 

 

Board Professional Development – Facilities Planning & Management 

Mr. Tony Cox, Chief of Operations, along with HEERY, International, presented an overview of the 

district’s recent Facilities Condition Assessment.     

 

Student Call to Order 

Ella Lesslie, a fifth-grade student at Cherry Park Elementary School of Language Immersion led in a 

moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 

Recognitions 

~RHHS Individual Wrestling State Champions 

Congratulations to student-athletes at Rock Hill High who claimed South Carolina High School League 

Individual state championships on February 23 at the Anderson Civic Center.   

 

Junior Michael Ramirez defeated Garrett Starts of Woodmont 3-0 by pinfall at the 152-weight class.  

Bailey Wilkins, a junior, defeated Chandler Amaker of Fort Dorchester by a 2-1 decision at the 138-

weight class to claim his third consecutive state championship.  Devon Rice defeated Malik Shuler of 

Spartanburg 3-0 in a tiebreaker at the 285-weight class.  Rock Hill is coached by Cain Beard. 

 

~All-State Chorus Students 

The All-State Chorus program was organized to provide an opportunity for superior choral students in 

South Carolina to sing together and to represent the state in statewide events.  Over 2,000 students from 

across the state auditioned.  The South Carolina All-State Chorus program provides an intensive and 

demanding vocal experience which fosters self-discipline and personal growth as well as musician shop.   

 

Thirty-one students from across the three high schools – Northwestern, Rock Hill, South Pointe – were 

recognized for being selected to the 2018-2019 All-State Chorus. 

 

~RHHS Drama Students 

Congratulations to Rock Hill High School drama students who received 10 superior ratings at the recent 

SC Speech and Theatre Association Festival.  In addition, Rock Hill High won first place for “How to 

Kiss a Girl” in Group Acting.    



 

School Board Work Session – Page 2 

Monday, April 11, 2019 

Central Office 

 

~SPHS Varsity Girls Basketball Team 

Congratulations to the South Pointe High School varsity girls basketball team which soared to new 

heights in 2018-2019 and finished the season with a 26-5 record after playing in the program’s first-ever 

SCHSL State Championship game on March 2 at University of South Carolina’s Colonial Life Arena.   

 

Policy FB – Facilities Planning – 2nd read 

Policy FB – Facilities Planning was presented for discussion.  This policy will be on the Action Agenda 

at the April 22 business meeting for 2nd and final read. 

 

Policy BE – School Board Meetings – 2nd read 

Policy BE – School Board Meetings was presented for discussion.  This policy will be on the Action 

Agenda at the April 22 business meeting for 2nd and final read. 

 

Policy KF, KF-R – Community Use of District Facilities – 2nd read 

Policy KF and administrative rule KF-R – Community Use of District Facilities were presented for 

review and discussion.  The policy and administrative rule will be on the Action Agenda at the April 22 

business meeting for 2nd and final read. 

 

First Set Section “A” Policies – 1st read 

Dr. Luanne Kokolis, Chief of Strategic Planning, Engagement & Program Support, presented the 

following policies to the Board for review and discussion: 

*Policy AA – School District Legal Status 

*Policy AC – Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 

*Policy ADF – District Wellness 

 

These policies will be on the Action Agenda at the April 22 business meeting for 1st reading. 

 

Field Study Request – Out of Continental United States (RHHS) 

Dr. Kokolis presented a field study request for the Rock Hill High School band to travel to Hawaii in 

2021.  This trip request will be on the Consent Action Agenda at the April 22 business meeting for 

approval.  

 

Textbook Acquisition 

Ms. Jen Morrison, executive director of secondary education, and Dr. Tonya Belton, instructional 

specialist, presented to the Board information on new instructional resource adoptions for the 2019-2020 

school year.  This item will be on the Consent Action Agenda at the April 22 business meeting for 

approval. 

 

Exceptional Student Services Update 

Dr. Nancy Turner, director of exceptional student education, presented to the Board information on 

movement of ESE Specialized Programs beginning with the 2019-2020 school year.  

 

 

 



 

School Board Work Session – Page 3 

Monday, April 8, 2019 

Central Office 

 

General Fund Budget Update FY19-20 

Mrs. Terri Smith, Chief Finance Officer, presented as information an update on the FY 2019-2020 

General Fund budget.  

 

 2017-18 Final Procurement Examination Report 

The audit firm Greene Finney, LLP examined the district’s procurement operating policies and 

procedures for the year ended June 30, 2018 to determine compliance with district procurement code.  

Ms. LaWana Robinson-Lee, purchasing director, presented the procurement examination results to the 

Board as information. 

 

Construction Update 

Mr. Brian Vaughan, executive director of facilities, updated the Board on construction projects currently 

in progress throughout the district.   

 

District Athletic Advisory Committee 

Dr. Kokolis informed the Board of the work of the athletic advisory committee.  At the conclusion of the 

committee work for this school term, the committee prioritized budget items that were recommended to 

the superintendent for consideration in the 2019-2 budget.   

 

July Board Meeting Date 

The Board discussed holding one combined business meeting/work session in July, either on July 15 or 

July 22.  Chairman Miller indicated a date will be voted on at the April 22 business meeting.  

 

Other and Future Business 

Mrs. Miller, Mrs. Reid and Dr. Cook shared information from the NSBA conference they recently 

attended.  

 

Executive Session 

A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to adjourn open session and enter 

executive session for personnel matters.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to adjourn executive session and 

return to open session.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

Action as Required from Executive Session 

A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to accept the Superintendent’s 

recommendations regarding the re-employment of administrators for the 2019-2020 school year, as set 

forth in the employment recommendations list.  This motion was unanimously passed, 7-0. 

 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Ann Reid, seconded by Windy Cole, to adjourn the meeting.  This motion was 

unanimously passed 7-0.   



 

                                      

 

 

 

 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Monday, April 22, 2019 

        6:00 p.m. - Central Office 

 

 I. Call to Order and Approval of Agenda 

  The Rock Hill School District Three Board of Trustees met this date at 6:00 p.m. with members 

present as follows:  Windy Cole, Mildred Douglas, Brent Faulkenberry, Terry Hutchinson, 

Helena Miller, Robin Owens, and Ann Reid.     

 

Chairman Miller opened the meeting and Jazmin Jenerett, a senior at South Pointe High 

School led in a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance.  Amanda Harris with The 

            Herald was present. 

 

 Ms. Miller stated that the local news media had been notified of the agenda for this meeting, in 

            writing, on Friday, April 12, 2019; and, of the amended agenda on Saturday, April 20, 2019. 

 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve the agenda.   

The agenda was unanimously approved as presented, 7-0. 

   

II. Recognitions 

A.    Recognition of 2018 Recycle-Bowl Champions for South Carolina 

Ms. Elizabeth Morgan, Environmental Education Specialist with the City of Rock Hill announced 

Belleview as this year’s winner of the national Keep America Beautiful Recycle Bowl award.     

 

B.   Recognition of National History Day Qualifiers 

Ms. Queenie Hall, instructional specialist, introduced students who qualified for the National 

History Day state competition after winning their respective categories in the Region 7 National 

History Day competition held at Winthrop University on March 13.   

 

C. Recognition of AP/IB/Dual Credit Students  

Students from each of our high schools who have participated in Advanced Placement, 

International Baccalaureate and/or Dual Credit courses as part of their program of studies were 

recognized and congratulated.   

 

III. Citizen Participation – Rev. Dante Murphy-Policy AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 

 

IV. Consent Action Agenda 

On a motion by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, the following topics on the 

consent action agenda were unanimously approved, 7-0: the minutes of the March 11 work 

session; the minutes of the March 25 business meeting; the personnel recommendations as 

submitted by the administration; an out of the continental U.S. field study request for Hawaii 

(RHHS); new textbook adoption; and, the FY2017-2018 procurement audit. 

                              



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

V.  Action Agenda 

A-C.  Approval of Section “A” Policies – 1st read 

A motion was made by Robin Owens, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve the following 

policies as a single action item, for 1st read: 

 

*Policy AA – School District Legal Status 

*Policy AC – Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 

*Policy ADF – District Wellness 

 

This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

D. Approval of Policy FB – Facilities Planning – 2nd read 

A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve Policy FB – 

Facilities Planning for 2nd and final read.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

E. Approval of Policy BE – School Board Meetings – 2nd read 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Ann Reid, to approve Policy BE – 

School Board Meetings for 2nd and final read.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

F. Approval of Policy KF, KF-R – Community Use of District Facilities – 2nd read 

A motion was made by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, to approve Policy KF and 

Administrative Rule KF-R – Community Use of District Facilities for 2nd and final read.   

 

This motion passed, 6-1, with Mrs. Douglas voting against.  

 

G.  Approval of July Board Meeting Date 

A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to approve July 22 as the 

date for the Board’s only meeting in July.  This will be a combined business meeting/work 

session and will begin at 8:30 a.m. on Monday, July 22, 2019. 

 

This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

VI. Communications – Dr. Clyde Edgerton - Tutoring 

 

VII. Report of the Superintendent 

A.  Announcements 

Superintendent Cook made the following announcements: 

• District leaders hosted the eighth Teacher Listen and Learn informational session for 

teachers from across the district on Friday, April 12.  This series of meetings continues to 

provide a rich opportunity to engage in dialogue with teachers about celebrations, issues 

and concerns for our school district.  To view detailed responses to questions and concerns 

from past Teacher Listen and Learn sessions, you are invited to visit www.rock-

hill.k12.sc.us/tll.  

• On Wednesday, May 8 at 6pm at the Central Office, our district will host the first-ever 

district-wide Career Signing Day.  This event will recognize our graduating seniors who 

are entering into the workforce in a position they prepared for during their high school 

pathway of study.  Similar to an athletic signing day, we will invite the student and their 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/tll
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/tll


 

future employer for a ceremony recognizing the commitment made between the student 

and the employer.   

• You are encouraged to visit the district’s capital building program, “Build on the Rock,” 

website – www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock  - for more information.  This website 

provides status updates on active and planned construction projects in the district.  On the 

page, viewers can see project descriptions, before and after photographs, and construction 

timelines. 

• The School Board will next meet on Monday, May 13 for a work session.  The meeting 

will begin at 4pm.  Our next business meeting will be Tuesday, May 28 at 6pm in the 

Central Office.  This meeting will be on Tuesday, due to the Memorial Day holiday on 

Monday, May 27.  Meetings are streamed on our website and are available for viewing on-

demand immediately following each broadcast.  We invite our community to watch 

meetings live on our Facebook broadcasts at Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.   

 

VIII. Review of School Board Work Session 

       Chairman Miller reviewed, for the viewing audience, the topics discussed at the April 8 

       work session.   

 

IX.     Other and Future Business 

    The board discussed other and future business. 

 

X.        Executive Session  

    A motion was made by Windy Cole, seconded by Terry Hutchinson, to adjourn open session 

    and enter executive session to discuss the following:   

 

      ~Contractual Matters – Intergovernmental Agreement 

 

     This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

      A motion was made by Ann Reid, seconded by Brent Faulkenberry to adjourn executive 

      session and reconvene open session.  This motion was unanimously approved, 7-0. 

 

XI.    Action as Required from Executive Session 

   There was no action taken from the executive session. 

 

XII. Adjournment 

       On a motion by Terry Hutchinson, seconded by Windy Cole, the Board voted  

                 unanimously, 7-0, to adjourn the meeting.   

 

 

  ______________________________ 

   Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED:  ________________________________ 

      Chairman   

 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock


 

             Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

   Monday, April 22, 2019 

 
 

PERSONNEL MATTERS – April 2019 
 

The board affirmed contracts for the following certified employee(s): 

Elizabeth Goodin .................. Ebinport 

Natalie Carranza Cardenas .... Finley Road 

George Cantrell ..................... Northwestern 

Andrew Haudricourt ............. Northwestern 

Tinley Middleton .................. Northwestern 

Kellie R. Conner ................... Rawlinson Road 

Gary A Dent .......................... Rawlinson Road 

Frank G. Fischer ................... Rawlinson Road 

Malik J. Jenkins .................... Rawlinson Road 

Morgan A. Butler .................. Rosewood 

Jason E. Allen ....................... Saluda Trail 

Gabrielle Davis ..................... South Pointe 

Rahsaan Perry ....................... South Pointe 

Melina Burkell ...................... Sullivan 

 

 

 

 

AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
   

Resignations – Administrative 

Sonya Miller ........................... Central Office / Finance 

 

Letters of Agreement Ending - Certified 

Thomas Monza ....................... Rock Hill High 

Raymond Krolewicz ............... South Pointe 

 

Resignations – Certified 

David C. Griggs ...................... Applied Technology 

Sarah Hill ................................ Belleview 

Aisling Carbery Shaha ............ Belleview/Northside/York Road 

Joyce  Courts-Massey ............. Castle Heights 

Susanne C. Montgomery ........ Castle Heights 

Justin Hunt .............................. Ebinport 

Alison Tracy-McHenry .......... Finley Road 

Barbara Wenham .................... Mt. Gallant 

Sofija Sadzakov ...................... Mt. Holly 

Shakira Weddington ............... Mt. Holly 

Keri Broadnax ........................ Northwestern 

Ashleigh S. Conteh ................. Northwestern 

Gunsby Dejohnett ................... Northwestern 

Teresa B. Gaskill .................... Old Pointe 

Jessica Burlamachi ................. Rawlinson Road 

Jillian Cronin .......................... Rawlinson Road 

Alyssa McAllister ................... Rawlinson Road 



 

Christopher Reday .................. Rawlinson Road 

JoAnne D. Turek .................... Rawlinson Road 

Lynn Hathcock ....................... Raven Academy 

Sasha G. Lee ........................... Rock Hill High 

Anne Murray .......................... Rock Hill High 

Michael Snipes ....................... Saluda Trail 

Julisa White ............................ Saluda Trail 

Humberto Guevara ................. South Pointe 

Trenton Lorcher ...................... South Pointe 

Benjamin Woodall .................. South Pointe 

Jason McManus ...................... South Pointe 

Adam J. Salisbury ................... Sullivan 

Victoria J. Bujak ..................... York Road 

 

Transfers – Certified 

Sharon Bybee ......................... Applied  Technology Center 

J. Marcella Elijah .................... South Pointe 

James West ............................. South Pointe 

 

New Employees – Non-Certified 

Ceslie Jenkins ......................... Dutchman Creek 

Heather Love .......................... Rosewood 

Wendell Ray ........................... Saluda Trail 

Karen L. Byers ....................... South Pointe 

Eduardo Rivera ....................... South Pointe 

 

Resignations – Non-Certified 

Tina R. Parrish ........................ Castle Heights 

Denise Havlice ....................... Central Office / Finance 

Debra Norwood ...................... Mt. Gallant 

Marvin Fleming ...................... Saluda Trail 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT 
 

MAY 28, 2019 
 

PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ROCK HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT THREE OF YORK COUNTY 

ROCK HILL, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

 
1.  BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 

 
            CERTIFIED 

 
New Employees ............................................. (52) 

 
2.  AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 
 
            ADMINISTRATIVE 
 

Resignations .................................................... (5) 
 
            CERTIFIED 

 
Resignations .................................................... (56) 
 
Transfers  ......................................................... (18) 

 
 

            NON-CERTIFIED 
 

New Employees ............................................. (5) 
 

Resignations .................................................... (9) 
 

Termination .................................................... (1) 
 
Transfers  ......................................................... (3) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD ACTION REQUIRED 

 
NEW EMPLOYEES – CERTIFIED (52) 

 
Jason Smith Applied Technology Center Small engine Technician 
Katherine Holder Belleview Media specialist 
Lauren Jenkins Belleview Grade one teacher 
Kimberly Robinson Belleview Grade four teacher 
Began Zahler Belleview Grade one teacher 
Amaris Bolyard Castle Heights Grade seven math teacher 
Robertretta Patterson Castle Heights Grade 8 English/LA teacher 
Tami Price Castle Heights Grade six math teacher 
Sara Brenton Cherry Park Grade one Spanish immersion/English teacher 

Jonathan Smith Ebinport Grade four teacher 
Christina Shaffery Exceptional Student Education Physical education teacher 
Kimberly Nelson Independence Grade five teacher 
Christine Ross Independence Art teacher 
Laura Rebecca Crumpton Mt. Holly School nurse 
George Cantrell Northwestern Math teacher 
Lynelle Cherry Northwestern Science teacher 
Ali Dean Northwestern Guidance counselor 
Lakeesha Jeter Northwestern Math teacher 
Tyler Klipa Northwestern Physical ed. teacher/strength & conditioning 
John McDonald Northwestern/Rock Hill High Social studies teacher 
Chanel Mims Northwestern Special education resource teacher 
Monica Chambo Oakdale Grade three teacher 
Julie Cornwell Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Valerie Dixon Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Brianna Larson Oakdale Grade five teacher 
Leigh Strickland Old Pointe Grade one teacher 
Jeremy Hughes Phoenix Academy Math teacher 
Heather Dillingham Raven Academy Behavior intervention teacher 
Kendrick Cherry Rawlinson Road Grade six social studies 
Madeline Colvin Rawlinson Road Grade six English/LA teacher 
James Kevin Davis Rawlinson Road Grade seven math teacher 
Gary Dent Rawlinson Road Grade eight social studies teacher 
Faith Patterson Rawlinson Road Grade seven science teacher 
Margaret Patton Richmond Drive Media specialist 
Michelle Taylor Richmond Drive Grade one teacher 
Brandice Brown Rock Hill High Guidance counselor 
Jonathan Ferguson Rock Hill High Media specialist 
Jim Gatch Rock Hill High Choral music teacher 
Jillian Knight Rock Hill High School nurse 
Erica Reuss Rock Hill High Math teacher 
Megan Flaherty Rosewood Grade one teacher 
Brianna Gaffney Saluda Trail Grade seven social studies teacher 
Shemeika Massey Saluda Trail Grade eight social studies teacher 
Taylor Snyder Saluda Trail Grade six social studies teacher 
Nathan Carnes South Pointe Choral music teacher 
Olga Goodman South Pointe Special education resource teacher 
Christopher Goodwin South Pointe Social studies teacher 
Kelsey Haizlip South Pointe Social studies teacher 
Sara Zee South Pointe Special education resource teacher 



Ayende Ignacio Alcala Sullivan Special education resource teacher 
Aracelis Rodriguez Sullivan Spanish teacher 
Jennifer Hudson York Road Grade four teacher 

 
AS INFORMATION TO THE BOARD 

 
RESIGNATIONS – ADMINISTRATIVE (5) 

 
Kevin Wren Administrative Services Director of safety & security 
Carrie Underwood Central Office/Instruction Research specialist 
Jason Ramey Independence Assistant principal 
Dr. Tammy White Sunset Park Principal 
Stephanie Koontz York Road Assistant principal 

 
RESIGNATIONS – CERTIFIED (56) 

 
Hope Abraham Belleview .4 FTE Title I math intervention teacher 
Christine M. Allen Belleview Grade four teacher 
Caroline Hodges Belleview Music teacher 
Samuel Koch Belleview Grade four teacher 
Caitlin Hayes Castle Heights Grade six English/LA/social studies teacher 
Rebecca Oliver Castle Heights Grade eight math teacher 
Briley Prince Castle Heights Grade six math teacher 
Flor de Lis Morales Torres Cherry Park Grade three Spanish immersion teacher 
Cornelia Hillman Dutchman Creek Special education resource teacher 
Michael de Kozlowski Dutchman Creek Grade eight science teacher 
Mackenzie Hadley-Theobald Dutchman Creek Guidance counselor 
Elizabeth Stewart Buie Exceptional Student Education Speech therapist 
Jessica D. Leslie Exceptional Student Education School psychologist 
Diane Gardin Finley Road Grade three teacher 
Corrie Lovell Independence Grade five teacher 
Adrienne Waymer Independence Special education SC/ED teacher 
Maria Elena M. Santiago Mt. Gallant Special education resource teacher 
Lisa A. Tasso Mt. Holly Special education resource teacher 
Janie L. Davis Northside Drama teacher 
Mary Monk Northside Grade five teacher 
William E. Archie, Jr. Northwestern Social studies teacher 
Lisa R. Lynn Northwestern Science teacher 
Sarah Zion Nasui Northwestern English teacher 
Robert H. Page, Jr. Northwestern Guidance counselor 
Katelin Tough Northwestern Social studies teacher 
Alexis Moore Oakdale Grade two teacher 
Stacy Wright Oakdale Kindergarten teacher 
Morgan Davis Raven Academy Physical education teacher 
Diane Slater Raven Academy Math teacher 
Deborah Harris Rawlinson Road Grade eight math teacher 
Kelly Hiatt Rawlinson Road Computer technology teacher 
Jennifer Mummert Rawlinson Road Grade six social studies teacher 
Garrett Shipley Rawlinson Road Grade eight social studies teacher 
Elisa Archie Rock Hill High Special education resource teacher 
James Blankenship Rock Hill High Science teacher 
Mallorie L. Llanas Rock Hill High Teacher/athletic trainer 



Jessica M. Lynn Rock Hill High Science teacher 
Anne K. Murray Rock Hill High Math teacher 
Donna Roberts Rock Hill High Media specialist 
Nancy Marty Rosewood Grade two teacher 
Jenelle Gilliam Saluda Trail Grade six English/LA teacher 
Anna Grice Saluda Trail Grade eight science teacher 
Ernessa H. Rice Saluda Trail Grade eight science teacher 
Victoria Sechrist Saluda Trail Grade eight English teacher 
Amy Smith Saluda Trail Special education intensive support teacher 
Kylie Betlesky South Pointe English teacher 
Christopher Bidell South Pointe Social studies teacher 
Anna F. Howell South Pointe Special education multi-cat III teacher 
Kristin Kunde South Pointe Math teacher 
Gloria Masterton South Pointe Social studies teacher 
Jeremy Linnick South Pointe English teacher 
Tricia Crenshaw Sullivan Grade seven science teacher 
Tim Davis Sullivan Grade eight science teacher 
Nermin Mansour Sullivan Guidance counselor 
Sue Whitley Sullivan Grade eight math teacher 
Modinatu Amuda Sunset Park Grade four teacher 
Danielle Ehrhardt Sunset Park Grade three teacher 

 
TRANSFERS – CERTIFIED (19) 

 
Sharon Bybee Applied Technology Center Guidance counselor 
Janet Barnes Belleview Grade four teacher 
Tonya Garren Castle Heights Middle level science teacher 
Steven D. Johnson, Jr. Castle Heights Spanish teacher 
Daphney Wells Castle Heights Grade six English/LA teacher 
Kirk Robinson Dutchman Creek Social studies teacher 
Rachel Faille Exceptional Student Education Vision teacher 
Juliene Jackson Finley Road Grade two teacher 
Kristen V. Nichols Mt. Holly Guidance counselor 
William McHenry Northwestern Social studies teacher 
Shayla Scott Northwestern Guidance counselor 
Leigh Strickland Old Pointe Grade one teacher 
Leslie Lanier Rawlinson Road Grade eight math teacher 
Kelly Mitchell Rawlinson Road Special education resource teacher 
Rita Akley Rock Hill High Science teacher 
Anna Bryson Rock Hill High Special education resource teacher 
Kelsey Overbeck Saluda Trail Grade six math teacher 
Melissa Remus Saluda Trail Grade six English/LA teacher 
Rebecca Matthews Sylvia Circle/T3 Program .7 FTE academic assistance teacher 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NEW EMPLOYEES – NON-CERTIFIED (5) 
 

Jennifer K. Hefley Central Child Development Ctr. Secretary/bookkeeper 
A. JoBeth Faile Central Office/Finance Payroll assistant 
Heather Buchanan Central Office/Finance Special revenue accounting specialist 
Jeff Blais Rock Hill High Special education assistant 
Michael Muhammad South Pointe In-school suspension monitor 

 
RESIGNATIONS – NON-CERTIFIED (9) 

 
Robert P. Arnold Facilities Services HVAC Technician/IAQ manager 
Beverly Hovis Facilities Services/Purchasing Purchasing assistant 
James M. Jennings Flex Center/Technology District technology support technician 
Sandra Howard Mt. Gallant Secretary/bookkeeper 
John T. Simpson Old Pointe Custodian 
Jeff Blais Rock Hill High Special education assistant 
Ronald H. Cauthen South Pointe Building maintenance 
Adam Rainey South Pointe Secretary 
Elizabeth Haile Sunset Park Kindergarten assistant 

 
TERMINATION – NON-CERTIFIED (1) 

 
Cynthia Long Richmond Drive Kindergarten assistant 

 
TRANSFERS – NON-CERTIFIED (3) 

 
Summer Shaver Castle Heights Secretary/attendance clerk 
Sarah K. Johnson Central Office/IT SIS coordinator 
Gail Willis Ebenezer Avenue Custodian 

 



PlMemo 
 

TO: Dr. William Cook 
 
FROM: Luanne Kokolis 
 
CC: Board Members 
 
DATE: May 22, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: A Policy Revisions for 2nd Read 
 
 
 
Attached are policies AA  School District Legal Status; AC Nondiscrimination/Equal 
Opportunity; ADF District Wellness for review. 
 
The attachment includes the current policy, the model policy, and the recommended 
revisions for board approval. 





























































Memo 
 
TO:    Dr. William E. Cook, Jr. 
 
FROM: Dr. Luanne Kokolis 
 
DATE: May 22, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: First Read Policies 

 
Attached are policies ADA School District Goals and Objectives and ADA-R 
(Administrative Rule); ADB Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco-Free Schools; and ADC 
Tobacco Free Schools for first read. 
 
Each policy packet includes the current policy, the model policy and the recommended 
policy for first read. 
 

• We are recommending the model policy and rule for ADA District Goals and 
Objectives.  The model policy condenses language and the details for 
implementation are included in the accompanying rule.  The only change from 
the work session is to the Administrative Rule.  It was suggested by stakeholder 
input to place in the rule that, School Renewal Plans will be placed on the 
school website, and that the district strategic plan will be placed on the district 
website.  This change in the rule is highlighted in blue. 

 

• We are recommending the model policy for ADB.  The model separates Drug, 
Alcohol, and Tobacco with a new title of Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace and 
Schools.  The policy covers schools and workplace in the district.  The former title 
just listed Schools and not Workplace. 

 

• We are recommending the model policy for ADC.  The model has a new title, 
Tobacco Free School District, replacing the former title, Tobacco Free Schools.  The 
model policy lists procedures and enforcement, therefore there is not a need for 
an accompanying rule. 

Planning Department 
Phone:  803-981-1045 

































































   

  Chief of Operations 
  V: 803-981-1010    acox@rhmail.org 
 
 

  

Memo 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 

FROM: Anthony Cox, P.E. 

DATE: May 22, 2019  

SUBJECT: Policy JIHC, Rule JIHC-R, Weapons Screening / Use of Metal Detectors 

CC:  Kevin Wren / Luanne Kokolis /  

   
 
With our continuing focus area on Safe and Secure Learning Environments, we began a new 
process of screening for weapons in our high schools this year.  We employed a guideline 
based on state law and regulation and adapted from a peer SC benchmark district to guide this 
process. 
 
In past years our existing policy JIHC, Use of Metal Detectors, and associated administrative 
rule had been used to govern a portion of this process in certain circumstances.  We have now 
incorporated our screening guideline into this policy and rule, and updated both to reflect our 
current best practice as JIHC, Weapons Screening/Use of Metal Detectors.  The title and text of 
the policy and rule have been reviewed by SCSBA legal counsel.  There is no state model 
policy or rule for this subject. 
 
We shared the proposed policy and rule with the Board at their Work Session on May 13, 2019.   
Comments were shared on this policy and rule at that time, and since then as well.  Changes to 
the proposed policy and rule have been made based on these comments.  Please find attached 
the current and updated, proposed policy and rule for first reading approval of the Board of 
Trustees at their upcoming Business Meeting on May 28, 2019.   















































Memo 
 
TO:    Dr. William E. Cook, Jr. 
 
FROM: Dr. Luanne Kokolis 
 
DATE: May 22, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: Five Year School Renewal Plans 

 
School Renewal Plans are attached for Board review and will be submitted for approval 
at the May business meeting. 
 
Each school must have at least three goals addressing the following areas: 
 
    Student Achievement 
    School Climate 
    Teacher and/or Administrator Quality 
 
Modifications were made to those plans that referred to reduced referrals to instead 
reflect “improved student behaviors” as a goal area statement for school climate.  The 
wording changes for the seven schools have been attached and will be incorporated into 
their climate goal area. 

Planning Department 
Phone:  803-981-1045 







































































   

  Finance 
  V:  803-981-1083    F:  803-980-2017 
 

 

  

 

Memo 
 

TO: Dr. Bill Cook 

FROM: Terri Smith 

DATE: May 22, 2019 

SUBJECT: Community Eligibility Provision (CEP) – Food Service Program 

  

 

Per Proviso 1.101 of the FY 2018-2019 General Appropriations Bill, H.4950, local Board 

of Trustees shall adopt a resolution indicating their participation in the Community 

Eligibility Provision (CEP) pursuant to section 1759(a) of Title 42 of the United States 

Code.  If a school district is unable to participate in CEP, the local Board of Education 

shall adopt a resolution stating it is unable to participate and the reason(s) why. 

 
Proviso 1.101.      (SDE: Student Meals)  For the current fiscal year, all school 

districts shall identify students in poverty according to the provisions in Proviso 

1.3 of this Act and increase access to free school meals for these students.  School 

districts shall use the criteria to directly certify pupils eligible for free and 

reduced-price school meals to the extent permitted under federal law. The local 

board of trustees of a district in which all schools are eligible to receive the free 

federal reimbursement rate for all reimbursable school breakfasts and lunches 

served, pursuant to the Community Eligibility Provision in Section 1759(a) of 

Title 42 of the United States Code, shall adopt a resolution indicating 

participation.  If a district is unable to participate, the local board of trustees 

shall adopt a resolution stating that it is unable to participate in CEP and 

demonstrate the reasons why.  The resolution shall be published on a public 

meeting agenda concurrently with the proposed district budget as an action item 

and shall be approved by a majority of the board.  School districts shall ensure 

that the parents or guardians of students eligible for free and reduced lunch 

receive the necessary applications and instructions and upon request are 

provided with assistance in completing the paperwork.  Schools shall not 

publically identify a student who is unable to pay for a meal for any reason. 

Communications from the district regarding any meal debt owed must only be 

directed to the parent or guardian and may be sent home through the student. 

 



   

   
 

 2 

Rock Hill Schools is unable to participate in CEP for FY 2019-2020 because it will not be 

fiscally viable.  Although the district has three schools that meet the minimum 

qualifying percentage (40% Identified Student Percentage) for the CEP program, it is 

projected that the Food Service program would have a monthly loss based on August 

2018 - April 2019 participation.  Per discussions with SC Department of Education, 

districts need a minimum of 50% Identified Student Percentage (ISP) to not lose money 

in the Food Service program. 

 

Qualifying School for FY 2019-2020 Identified Student Percentage 

Belleview Elementary 44.69% 

Finley Road Elementary 40.23% 

York Road Elementary 43.49% 

 

Belleview Elementary 

Month 
Loss if CEP 

Using Actual 
Participation 

CEP Loss if 5% 
increase in 

Participation 

CEP Loss if 10% 
increase in 

Participation 

August 2018 (2,938) (2,967) (2,996) 

September 2018 (4,322) (4,343) (4,364) 

October 2018 (6,065) (6,098) (6,131) 

November 2018 (5,577) (5,606) (5,635) 

December 2018 (4,542) (4,562) (4,582) 

January 2019 (5,744) (5,777) (5,810) 

February 2019 (5,973) (5,989) (6,005) 

March 2019 (4,501) (4,527) (4,553) 

April 2019 (5,254) (5,269) (5,284) 

Totals (44,916) (45,137) (45,359) 

 

Finley Road Elementary 

Month 
Loss if CEP 

Using Actual 
Participation 

CEP Loss if 5% 
increase in 

Participation 

CEP Loss if 10% 
increase in 

Participation 

August 2018 (6,855) (6,881) (6,907) 

September 2018 (3,588) (3,620) (3,652) 

October 2018 (5,148) (5,196) (5,244) 

November 2018 (4,236) (4,268) (4,300) 

December 2018 (3,334) (3,355) (3,376) 

January 2019 (4,499) (4,533) (4,567) 

February 2019 (5,364) (5,407) (5,450) 

March 2019 (6,040) (6,121) (6,202) 

April 2019 (4,363) (4,391) (4,419) 

Totals (43,427) (43,772) (44,117) 

 



   

   
 

 3 

York Road Elementary 

Month 
Loss if CEP 

Using Actual 
Participation 

CEP Loss if 5% 
increase in 

Participation 

CEP Loss if 10% 
increase in 

Participation 

August 2018 (2,039) (2,067) (2,095) 

September 2018 (4,189) (4,210) (4,231) 

October 2018 (4,950) (4,978) (5,006) 

November 2018 (5,182) (5,215) (5,248) 

December 2018 (3,679) (3,694) (3,709) 

January 2019 (4,699) (4,728) (4,757) 

February 2019 (5,024) (5,053) (5,082) 

March 2019 (6,210) (6,241) (6,272) 

April 2019 (4,077) (4,099) (4,121) 

Totals (40,048) (40,284) (40,520) 

 
Total All Three Schools 

Month 
Loss if CEP 

Using Actual 
Participation 

CEP Loss if 5% 
increase in 

Participation 

CEP Loss if 10% 
increase in 

Participation 

August 2018 (11,831) (11,914) (11,997) 

September 2018 (12,099) (12,173) (12,247) 

October 2018 (16,163) (16,272) (16,381) 

November 2018 (14,995) (15,089) (15,183) 

December 2018 (11,555) (11,611) (11,667) 

January 2019 (14,942) (15,038) (15,134) 

February 2019 (16,360) (16,448) (16,536) 

March 2019 (16,752) (16,889) (17,027) 

April 2019 (13,694) (13,759) (13,824) 

Totals (128,391) (129,193) (129,996) 

 

 

Administration will continue to monitor CEP eligibility for future school years.  A copy 

of the resolution is attached.   



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF ROCK HILL SCHOOLS BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGARDING THE  

COMMUNITY ELIGIBILITY PROVISION OF  

THE HEALTHY, HUNGER-FREE KIDS ACT OF 2010 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board, recognizes the need to utilize effective methods to increase access to free school 

meals for students living in poverty; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board, participates in the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs; 

 
WHEREAS, the Healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act of 2010 includes the Community Eligibility Provision 

(CEP), 42 U.S.C.A § 1759(a), allowing qualifying districts to serve all students free meals; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board, makes the following factual findings: 

 

Belleview Elementary (44.69% ISP), Finley Road Elementary (40.23% ISP), and York Road 

Elementary (43.49%) meet the minimum qualifying percentage of 40 percent of identified 

students for free meals for the 2019-2020 school year; 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of these factual findings, the Board has determined that participation in the CEP 

is not fiscally viable; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Board hereby elects not to 

participate in the CEP but will continue working toward implementation of methods to increase access 

to free school meals for students living in poverty. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on _________________, 2019. 

 

 

      

ROCK HILL SCHOOLS BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

     Board Chair Signature 

 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Community Eligibility Provision (CEP)
Board Business Meeting

May 28, 2019



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Board Resolution Required by Legislation

• FY 2018-2019 General Appropriations Bill, Proviso 1.101

• Must indicate if district will participate in the Community Eligibility 
Provision (CEP) program

• If no participation in CEP, resolution must indicate why



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

What is Community Eligibility Provision?

• Non-pricing meal service option for eligible schools / districts in low-
income areas

• Breakfast and lunch served at no cost to students 

• No collecting free & reduced meal applications

• Reimbursed using formula based on percentage of identified students:
• Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)

• Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

• Foster, homeless, migrant, runaway students, Head Start students



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Benefits of CEP

Students

• Access to free nutritious meals for all students at the eligible school(s); no stigma

• Less time spent in cashier lines and more time to eat

Parents

• No household application to complete for students at the eligible school(s)

• No worries about lunch account balances

School

Staff

• Streamlined meal service operation; more time for students to consume their food

District 

Level

• Reduced paperwork and administrative costs

• No need to track unpaid meal charges at eligible school(s)

• More nourished students ready to learn and grow



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Who Can Participate?

Individual / group of schools or all schools in a district
• Minimum Identified Student Percentage (ISP) ≥40 percent in the prior 

school year

• Participate in National School Lunch Program and School Breakfast 
Program



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Financial Sustainability

• Minimum identified student percentage (ISP) required to participate - 40%
• May not be financially viable if ISP is between 40% - 49%

• Recommendation - minimum of 50% ISP

• Schools may be grouped for combined percentage of minimum 50% ISP

• Any meal costs in excess of the total federal reimbursement must be 
covered through non-federal sources



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

FY 2019-2020 Eligible Schools

• Belleview Elementary - 44.69% identified students

• Finley Road Elementary – 40.23% identified students

• York Road Elementary – 43.49% identified students



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Projected Loss 

$128,391

Projected 
Loss in 

Revenue

York Road

$40,048

Finley 
Road

$43,427

Belleview 

$44,916

*Based on August 2018 – April 2019 participation 



One Team. One Mission. One Rock Hill.

Questions?



 

 

 
Memorandum 
TO: Dr. Bill Cook 
FROM: Mychal Frost 
DATE: May 22, 2019  
SUBJECT: Announcements for May 28th School Board Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
High School Graduation 
On Saturday, June 8, more than 1,100 students in the Class of 2019 are expected to participate in graduation 
commencement at the Winthrop Coliseum. This year, Rock Hill High School will begin our day of celebration at 
10 a.m., followed by Northwestern at 2 p.m., and South Pointe at 6 p.m. As a reminder to our community, this is 
a ticket-only event, and we look forward to celebrating this academic milestone with our students and their 
families while maintaining the dignity of the ceremony. Safety and security plans have been reviewed with 
Winthrop University Police, Rock Hill Police, and contracted security guards in an effort to ensure each 
ceremony operates smoothly. For the second consecutive year, each ceremony will be broadcast live on the 
district website as well as the district Facebook page. To view on our website, please visit www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/graduation.  
 
Football City USA Night of Champions and Skills Camp 
Join Rock Hill Schools and the Rock Hill Schools Education Foundation as we recognize and celebrate Rock Hill 
Schools alumni who have gone on to play in the National Football League. On June 28, we are hosting the first-
ever Night of Champions at Southern Charm Events to raise funds that will benefit each District Three high 
school athletics program and the Rock Hill Schools Education Foundation. We have invited many District Three 
alumni home for this event, including 2019 Super Bowl champions Stephon Gilmore and Cordarelle Patterson, as 
well as Ben Watson, Chris Hope, Mason Rudolph, Rick Sanford, Jadeveon Clowney, DeVonte Holloman, Tori 
Gurley, Jaleel Scott, Johnathan Joseph, Derek Ross, Ko Simpson, and more. A free skills camp will be held on 
Saturday, June 29 for more than 350 area children where they will receive coaching from coaches from our high 
schools and our NFL alumni. If interested in purchasing tickets or sponsorship packages to the Night of 
Champions, please visit the foundation’s website at www.rhsdfoundation.org. 
 
Rock Hill Adult Education Graduation 
On Tuesday, June 11, Rock Hill Schools Adult Education will host its graduation ceremony at Castle Heights 
Middle School. The ceremony will begin at 7 p.m. 
 
2019-2020 Preliminary Budget  
Last week, Chief Financial Officer Terri Smith presented an overview of the preliminary general fund budget for 
2019-2020. For those who were unable to attend the Budget Listen and Learn, the recording of the meeting can 
be viewed on the school district’s website. On Monday, June 10, at 5:30 p.m., district administration will host 
the official public hearing on the proposed 2019-2020 general fund budget. Two weeks later, on June 24 at 6 
p.m., the Board of Trustees is expected to vote on the budget.  
 
 

Marketing & Communications Department 

Telephone:  981-1008  -   Fax:  981-1094 

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/graduation
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/graduation


 

 

Follow Capital Program Updates 
You are encouraged to visit the district's capital building program, "Build on the Rock," website – www.rock-
hill.k12.sc.us/BuildOnTheRock -- for more information on capital projects. The website provides status updates 
on active and planned construction projects in the district. On the page, viewers can see project descriptions, 
before and after photographs, and construction timelines.  
 
Upcoming Board Meetings 
The School Board will next meet on Monday, June 10th  for a work session. The meeting will begin at 4 p.m. Our 
next business meeting will be Monday, June 24th at 6 p.m. in the Central Office. Meetings are streamed on our 
website and available for viewing on-demand immediately following each broadcast. We invite our community 
to watch meetings live on our Facebook broadcasts at Facebook.com/RockHillSchools.  

http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071
http://www.rock-hill.k12.sc.us/site/Default.aspx?PageID=6071


 

At its work session on May 13, 2019, held at the Central Office, the board: 

 

• held a Board Professional Development session;  

 

• recognized numerous students; 

 

• heard a report from the DCMS SIC; 

 

• reviewed Section “A” Policies for 2nd read; 

 

• reviewed Section “A” Policies for 1st read; 

 

• reviewed Policy JIHC, JIHC-R for 1st read; 

 

• received information on the Community Eligibility Provision for the Food 

Service program; 

 

• reviewed administrative rule IJOA-R – Field Study; 

 

• reviewed the Healthy Snack List; 

 

• received information on meal prices for 2019-20; 

 

• reviewed school renewal plans for approval; 

 

• heard a general fund budget update; 

 

• received an Energy Management Update; 

 

• discussed other and future business; and, 

 

• held an executive session for personnel matters and contractual matters. 

 

 

 

 

 



Other and Future Business   Helena Miller 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Executive  Session  

• Personnel Matters 

➢ Hirings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action as Required from Executive Session  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjournment  


	Agenda 5 28 19 Business Meeting
	Student to Do Call to Order 5.28.19
	Recognitions 5.28.2019
	MINUTES Work Session 4 8 19
	MINUTES Business Meeting 4 22 19
	Monthly Board Report Summary -052819
	Board memo A policies Business meeting
	Policy Feedback ADF
	AA, AC, ADF
	Memo School A policies Business meeting1
	Policy Feedback ADA,ADB,ADC
	ADA, ADB, ADC
	Memo JIHC,R First Read
	Policy Feedback JIHC
	JIHC Proposed , Current
	JIHC,R Proposed, Current
	Memo School Renewal Plans Business meeting
	Update SRP business meeting
	Memo CEP
	RHS CEP Resolution FY19-20
	2019.5.22 Rock Hill Schools CEP PowerPointV2.0
	Announcements 5.28.19
	Review of May 13 2019 Work Session
	Other and Future Business
	Executive Session, Adjournment

